
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA  
LICENSING PANEL 

 
 
Date: Thursday, 27 August 2020 
  
Time: 10.30 am 
  
Venue: Virtual Meeting via Teams 

 
 
Members:  
Councillor M J Ford, JP (Chairman) 

 
Councillors Mrs S M Bayford 

Mrs P M Bryant 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 

 

 
1. Licensing Act 2003 - Application for variation of Premises Licence - Cams Hill 

School, Shearwater Avenue, Fareham PO16 7AZ (Pages 3 - 40) 
 To consider a report by the Licensing Officer regarding an application for variation of 

premises licence for Cams Hill School, Shearwater Avenue, Fareham PO16 7AZ 
 

 
P GRIMWOOD 
Chief Executive Officer 
www.fareham.gov.uk  
19 August 2020 

 
 
 

For further information please contact: 
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ 

Tel:01329 236100 
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk 

Page 2

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/
tel:01329
mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk


  


 

Report to 
Licensing Panel 

 
 
 
Date:  27 August 2020  
 
 
Report of: The Licensing Officer  
 
 
Subject: LICENSING ACT 2003 – APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF 

PREMISES LICENCE  
 
 

 

 

SUMMARY 

This report advises Members of the Panel of an application for a Variation of a new 
Premises Licence for Cams Hill School, Shearwater Avenue, Fareham, PO16 8AH. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Panel determines the application having regard to the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 and associate regulations, the Council’s 
Licensing Policy and the Representations made. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



  

BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Licensing Act 2003 specifically restricts the grounds on which the Council, 

as Licensing Authority (LA), may refuse an application for a New Premises 
Licence, or impose conditions.  Where relevant representations are made, the 
LA may refuse on the grounds that the licensing objectives are not met or the 
operating schedule is inadequate.  Equally, conditions may be imposed where 
appropriate.  The LA may also refuse an application in part and thereby only 
permit some of the licensable activities sought.  
 

2. The decision-making committee, in considering an application, must have 
regard to the adopted Statement of Licensing Policy and any relevant 
representations made. 
 

3. An applicant applying for a new premises licence, whose application has been 
refused, or who is aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the 
decision to the Magistrates' Court.  
 

4. In considering this application the Panel will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and is 
thus obliged to consider applications in accordance with both the Licensing Act 
2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and amending secondary legislation and the 
rules of natural justice.  The practical effect of this is that the Panel must make 
its decision based on evidence submitted in accordance with the legislation and 
give adequate reasons for reaching its decision.  The Panel must also have 
regard to:- 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a Council under a duty to 
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise 
of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, 
crime and disorder in its area.  
 
Human Rights Act 1998 
 
The Act requires UK legislation in a manner consistent with the European 
Convention on Human Rights.  It is unlawful for the Council to act in a way that 
is incompatible with the rights protected by the Act.  Any action undertaken by 
the Council that could have an effect upon other persons' Human Rights must 
be no more onerous than is necessary in a democratic society.  The matter set 
out in this report must be considered in light of the above obligations.  

 
PROCEDURE FOR THE HEARING OF THE APPLICATION 
 
5. The standard procedure for the hearing of this licensing application can be seen 

as Appendix A. 

Page 4



  

THE APPLICATION  
 

6. This application is in respect of:- 
  

Cams Hill School 
Shearwater Avenue 
Fareham  
PO16 8AH 
 
A copy of the application can be seen as Appendix B.  The Premises Plan can 
be seen as Appendix C.   
 

RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS  
 
Responsible Authorities 
 

7. In respect of this new premises application the following summarises from 
whom representations have been received:- 

 
Child Protection Services   No representation 
Hampshire Fire and Rescue No representation  
FBC Health and Safety  No representation 
FBC Pollution   No representation  
FBC Planning   No representation  
Police     No representation  
Trading Standards   No representation  
Hampshire Public Health  No representation  
 

OTHER PERSONS REPRESENTATIONS 
 

8. Three representations have been received from members of the public.  No 
representations have been received from Responsible Authorities.  
 

9. All of the individual representations can be seen as Appendix D.  Two of the 
three representees requested that their details were not disclosed.  Therefore, 
their personal information has been redacted. 

 
10. A map showing the premises and the location of “Other Persons” properties can 

be seen as Appendix E.  The two representees wishing not to disclose their 
personal details do not appear on Appendix E but are local residents.  
 

11. Any decision made by the Panel must be in accordance with the four licensing 
objectives, the Council's licensing policy and the Section 182 guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 

12. The Panel members are asked to review the information in this report and any 
additional evidence presented to them at the Hearing when determining the 
application.  
 
 

Page 5



  

Background papers:  
 
None.  
 
 
Enquiries: 
 
For further information on this report please contact Gemma Knipe (Ext 4428). 
 

Licensing, Fareham Borough Council, Civic Offices, Civic Way, Fareham, PO16 7AZ           

www.fareham.gov.uk 

 

Hearings procedure as detailed at      APPENDIX A 
New Premises Application        APPENDIX B 
Premises Plan        APPENDIX C 
Representations        APPENDIX D 
Map showing premises and “Other Persons” proximity   APPENDIX E 
 
 

Page 6

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/


  

APPENDIX A 

 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS BY THE LICENSING PANEL 

GENERAL  

1 This procedure will be followed for hearings held by the Licensing Panel to 
determine :- 

 Applications for grant, variation or review of a premises licence under the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 where representations have been 
made by any of the responsible authorities or other persons (as defined by 
the Licensing Act 2003); 
 

 Applications for grant or renewal of a personal licence under the provisions 
of the Licensing Act 2003 where representations have been made by any 
of the responsible authorities or other persons (as defined by the Licensing 
Act 2003); 
 

 Applications for grant or renewal of a public entertainments licence which 
is not otherwise determined by officers; 

 

 Such other licensing matter as may be referred by the Licensing Officer or 
the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee from time to time. 

 

2 Hearings shall be held in public unless the Panel considers that the greater 
public interest is served by excluding the public from the meeting in 
accordance with Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
Circumstances when it may be appropriate to do so include where there is a 
likelihood of disclosing exempt information relating to the applicant.  

 

3 Parties to the hearing will be the applicant and any responsible authority or 
other person party making representations.  The parties to the hearing may be 
accompanied by a representative, who may present the case on their behalf. 

 

4 The Licensing Officer will not be a party to the hearing but will facilitate 
proceedings by conducting such pre-decision discussions as may be required 
and by presenting at the hearing a summary report of the application and any 
representations, together with the Officer’s comments as to how these relate 
to the relevant legislation and the appropriate licensing policy. 

 

5 Where any party intends to produce documents in support of his/her case they 
shall have been asked to do so in advance of the date of hearing.  In the event 
that a document is submitted for consideration for the first time at the hearing, 
the Chairman may adjourn the hearing to a later time or date.  It is expected 
that such adjournments will only be used in exceptional circumstances.  The 
Chairman may in any event adjourn the hearing at any time before the Panel 
reaches its decision for any other reason he/she considers appropriate. 
 

6 Each party when asked will present details of any witnesses to be called. 

Page 7



 

  
 

 
 
 
 
AT A HEARING in accordance with THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
1 The Chairman of the Licensing Panel will outline the procedure to be 

observed and may invite any Other Persons to appoint a spokesperson2.   
 
2 The Chairman will ask the applicant whether any modification is to be made 

to the application or operating schedule submitted. 
 
3 The Licensing Officer will present a summary of the application and of any 

representations received and will comment upon their relevance to the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Council’s licensing policy. 

 
4 The Applicant may comment on the application and on representations made 

addressing the four licensing objectives3. 
 
5 The Panel may seek clarification of points. 
  
6 The responsible authorities in turn shall make their representations relating 

to one or more of the licensing objectives3 and may be questioned by 
members of the Licensing Panel and/or applicant.    

 
7 Other Persons1 in turn shall make their representations relating to one or 

more of the licensing objectives3 and may be questioned by members of the 
Licensing Panel and/or applicant.    

 
8 The responsible authorities in turn may make a closing statement. 
 
9 The Other Persons in turn may make a closing statement. 
 
10 The Applicant may make a closing statement.    
 
11 The Licensing Panel will then withdraw from the hearing to deliberate in 

private. In the event of uncertainty on any of the evidence, all parties will be 
recalled to the hearing whilst the point in question is clarified. In the event that 
the Licensing Panel has sought advice on points of law, the legal adviser shall 
explain to all parties what advice was given. 

 
12 All parties shall be invited to return to the hearing when the Licensing Panel 

has completed its deliberations. 
 
13 The Chairman shall announce the Panel’s decision. 

________________________ 
 

1 
:  i.e. those other than responsible Authorities who have submitted representations; 

2 :  
this is most likely where there are a number of persons making representations upon the 

same point. The fact that the Panel does not hear from all Other Persons will not mean that their 
representations are not taken into account, but rather that the strength of feeling is understood 
and the case will not gain weight through repetition; 

3. the four licensing objectives are:- (i) The prevention of crime and disorder; (ii) Public Safety; 
(iii) The prevention of public nuisance; (iv) The protection of children from harm. 

Page 8



Appendix B

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18

2713
Stamp

2713_1
Stamp

2713_2
Stamp

2713_3
Stamp

2713_4
Stamp

2713_5
Stamp



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21

2713_6
Stamp

2713_7
Stamp

2713_8
Stamp

2713_9
Stamp

2713_10
Stamp

2713_11
Stamp

2713_12
Stamp

2713_13
Stamp

2713_14
Stamp

2713_15
Stamp

2713_16
Stamp

2713_17
Stamp

2713_18
Stamp

2713_19
Stamp

2713_20
Stamp

2713_21
Stamp



Page 22



Page 23

4363
Text Box
APPENDIX C



Page 24



 
        APPENDIX D 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003 – REPRESENTATION FORM 

 
To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club 
Premises Certificate please complete the following form.  For representations to be 
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the four "Licensing 
Objectives" (listed below). 
 
Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view.  If you 
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called 
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Panel. 
 

Personal Details 

 
Name ………Mr Russell Corrigan ……...………………………………………………… 
 
Address ……17 Shearwater Avenue, Fareham, Hampshire…………………………… 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Postcode: .PO16 8YE………   Contact telephone Number…… 07753832989……….. 

 

Licence application you wish to make a representation on 

 
You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as 
much information as you can: 
 
Licence number …………………………… 
 
Name of Applicant: …Cams Hill School……………………………………………… 
 
Name of Premises: …Cams Hill School……………………………………………. 
 
Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect): 
 
.. Shearwater Avenue, Fareham……………………………………………………….. 
 
………………………………………………………  Postcode: …PO16 7AZ………… 
 

 

Reason/s for representation 
 
Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is 
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives. 
 
Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be considered. 
 
Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing 
Objective it relates to. 

Page 25



 2 

 
 

 

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Public Safety 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
My house is the closest residential property to the Cams Hill school complex, we directly face 
and overlook the school classroom that was recently added to their complex (part of the sports 
hall and associated changing rooms). This classroom also suffers from poor ventilation and as 
such needs the “emergency” door to be opened (for example during warm weather). 
 
My wife and I are concerned that if this classroom and the school grass area directly between 
both parties were to be used for events where the consumption of alcohol was allowed it would 
be a major nuisance, both in terms of noise and loss of privacy (this area has direct views into 
our dining room and main bedroom). 
 
If the premises site license application were to be amended to exclude holding alcohol events 
directly opposite my property (as outlined above) then I would have no other concerns.   
 
 
 
 
 

 

The Protection of Children from Harm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 26



 3 

I, …………Russell Corrigan…………………………………………, hereby declare that all 
information I have submitted is true and correct. 
 
Signed: …………R J Corrigan…………………………………..   Dated: …05/08/2020……………. 
 
Please send completed form to: 
 
The Licensing Team 
Fareham Borough Council 
Civic Offices 
Civic Way 
Fareham 
PO16 7AZ 

Page 27



 4 

Licensing Act 2003 Guidance: How to Make a Licensing Representation 

 
 
Criteria for making a representation 
 
Under the Licensing Act 2003, any person is able to make written representation in relation to 
certain types of applications. However, for a representation to be considered relevant, it must 
address the likely effect the granting of the application will have on the promotion of one or more 
of the following licensing objectives:  
 

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder  

 Public Safety  

 The Prevention of Public Nuisance  

 The Protection of Children from Harm  
 
Representations must relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from the premises on 
those objectives listed above. By way of an illustrative example: “…a representation from a local 
business person about the commercial damage caused by competition from a new licensed 
premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a businessperson that 
nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from entering the local area, and the 
steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant.”1  

 
Please also be aware that the Licensing Authority will not consider representations that are 
frivolous or vexatious. The former category refers to representations that display a lack of 
seriousness in purpose or nature, whilst the latter relates to representations which appear to be 
intended to cause aggravation or annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without 
reasonable cause of justification.  
 
Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representation on either of the above grounds 
may lodge a complaint via the Council’s complaints procedure.  
 
Making a representation 
  
Relevant representations must be in writing and submitted to the Licensing Authority within the 
28-day notice period. Late representations will not be considered and will be returned.  
 
If you are unsure when the application was made, you can view the following website 
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/licensing_and_inspections/licensing/premlicensing.aspx and follow 
the link near the bottom of the page ‘Register of current applications and reviews requested’. 
Alternatively, you can look at the site notice posted at the premises which advertises the 
application. If you would like information about licences already in force please contact the 
Licensing Team at Fareham Borough Council on 01329 824373.  
 
We have prepared a ‘Representation Form’ which can be used to assist you when making 
representations. The form is designed to help extract the type of information which is required to 
ensure the representation is relevant and therefore, can be accepted. 
 

                                            
1
 Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 – October 2012 

Page 28

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/licensing_and_inspections/licensing/premlicensing.aspx


 5 

Alternatives to making a representation  
 
If you do not want to make your own representation, then you may wish to consider approaching 
a representative who may consent to make the representation on your behalf. For example, you 
may wish to ask a local Councillor or any other recognised body or association. If you are unsure 
about whom you can approach in your area, please contact the Licensing Team.  
 
If your chosen representative is willing to act on your behalf, you must submit a letter of 
authorisation to the Licensing Department as part of your representation. You must provide your 
chosen representative with your name, address and details of the grounds upon which your 
representation is made. They should then submit written representation to the Licensing 
Authority replicating the grounds upon which your representation is made.  
 
Please note that all future dialogue and correspondence will be held with your representative, 
and the Licensing Authority will not be in a position to make direct contact with you. 
Consequently, the Notice of Hearing and any decision notice will also be sent to your 
representative. 
 
Petitions  
 
When organising/submitting a petition as part of your representation, there are some important 
factors to bear in mind:  
 

 We ask that the instigator of the petition identifies themselves as a central point of contact, 
as we may need to make contact in order to verify certain matters and if we are unable to 
do so this could invalidate the petition.  

 

 Each page of the petition should contain information as to the purpose of the petition so 
that all persons know what they are signing.  

 

 Full names and addresses for each signatory must be provided.  
 

 All signatories must be made aware that where representations are made and not 
withdrawn, a copy of the petition will be supplied to the applicant and a copy will be 
contained within the committee papers.  

 
The Licensing Authority will not write to each signatory separately but instead expects that the 
instigator of the petition will advise each signatory of the hearing date and the final outcome of 
the application. It is also expected that the instigator will represent signatories at the hearing and 
will speak for them.  
 
Disclosure of personal details of persons making representation  
 
Where a Notice of Hearing is given to an applicant, the Licensing Authority is required to provide 
that applicant with copies of the relevant representations that have been made. It is only in 
exceptional circumstances that personal details will be removed from representation 
correspondence.  
 
We would refer you to Government Guidance on this matter, which states:  
 
“In exceptional circumstances, persons making representation to the licensing authority may be 
reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal details, such as 
name and address, are divulged to the applicant.  

Page 29



 6 

Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded fear of 
intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis, they may wish to 
consider alternative approaches.  
 
For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority with 
details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so that the 
responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified. 
 
The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal details 
from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general location within a 
street). However, withholding such details should only be considered where the circumstances 
justify such action.2  
 
Hearings  
 
If the Licensing Authority decides that representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing to 
consider them.  In the meantime, the Licensing Authority, the applicant and any person or body 
who has made representation can negotiate an agreeable way forward, and where written 
agreement is reached between all parties, the hearing may be cancelled.  
 
The Licensing Authority strongly encourages all parties to mediate, and will assist, where 
possible, in the facilitation of mediation discussions.  
 
Where agreement cannot be reached, the hearing will take place before a Licensing Panel, 
which is made up of three Elected Members from the Council’s Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Committee. 
 
The applicant, persons making representation, and any responsible authority will receive a 
Notice of Hearing. The Notice will set out the date, time and location and explains the procedure 
to be followed at the hearing. The Notice will be sent out within the prescribed statutory 
timescales.  Please note that you are required to respond to this Notice.  
 
All parties who have submitted a representation will be able to address the Sub-Committee. No 
new grounds of objection may be raised at this stage and parties are limited to speaking to 
matters outlined in their original representation and response to Notice of Hearing, although 
detail provided may be expanded upon. 
 
Where you have chosen to use a representative, only they may speak on your behalf. However, 
Members may still wish to direct questions to applicants, even in cases where they are 
represented.  
 
Please note that parties will all be given an equal amount of time in which to address the Panel, 
but that time period may be limited by the Chairman of the Panel – for example, where there are 
numerous objections, speaking time may be limited to 5 minutes, or the Chairman may request, 
where lots of similar representations have been made, that a spokesperson is nominated.  
 
The Panel will not permit cross examination between parties.  
 
Please be assured that if for any reason you are unable to attend the hearing, the Panel will still 
consider your written representation.  
 

                                            
2
 Amended guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 – October 2012 

Page 30



 7 

The Panel will normally announce their decision at the hearing, and written confirmation will be 
distributed to all parties following the hearing.  
If any party is aggrieved by the decision, an appeal may be made to the Magistrates’ Court.  An 
appeal has to be commenced by the appellant giving notice of appeal to the designated officer 
for the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the 
appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision which is being appealed. 
 
Contact Details:  
 
Licensing Team 
Fareham Borough Council 
Civic Offices 
Civic Way 
Fareham 
PO16 7AZ 
 
01329 236100 (switchboard) 01329 824373 (direct line) 
 
Email: Licensing@fareham.gov.uk 
 
 
 
The advice in this document should not be regarded as a definitive statement of the law 
– it is our current interpretation only, and may be subject to change Only the Courts 
can give an authoritative opinion on statute law.  
 

Page 31

mailto:Licensing@fareham.gov.uk




Page 33

4363_1
Text Box
APPENDIX D



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39




	Agenda
	1 Licensing Act 2003 - Application for variation of Premises Licence - Cams Hill School, Shearwater Avenue, Fareham PO16 7AZ
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D Corrigton Rep
	APPENDIX D Redacted B And D Rep
	Updated APPENDIX E Residents and Cams Plan




